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INTRODUCTION
Plaintift ASIS INTERNET SERVICES ("Plainlif) submits this motion 1o tha pourt for
Summary Adjudication of certain issues defining the scope of discovery in this action,

A difference of opinion has arisen between |he parties as to the legal limitations of what
interrogatories, preduction of documents, and depositions may be demanded under the causes
of action brought by Plaintiff for violations of the CAN SPAM Act and California Business and
Professions Code §17529 5.

The parties are in disagreamanlt as to the following issues:

1 Whether Ihe lollowing lypes of evidence are discoverable/admissibile on the
tiuestion of whathar a defendant who contends that they did not directly transmit emails in
viglation of the CAN SPAM Act and California Business and Professions Code §175295
can be forced fo produce evidence regarding whether they procured he sending of thosae
emails within the meaning 15 USC TT02{12) and 15 USC 7706(g)-

A, Evidence that Defendant has a reputstion for initiating commersctal electronic

emaiis In viclation of the CAN SPAM Act. 15 USC 7701 et seq.

B. Evidence thal third parfies In privity with the Defendants in relation to intemet
marketing activiliez have a repulation for initiating commareial alectronic emalls in
violation of the CAN SPAM Act. 15 USC 7701 et. seq.

c. Wheather Defendant has initisted commercial electronic mail messagoes, ofher
than those al Issue, in vialation of the CAN SPAM Act. 15 USC 7701 el. seq.

0. Evidence that third parties in privily with the Defendanis in relation o intemet
markeling activities have initiated commercial electronic mail messages, othar
than those at issue, in violation of the CAN SPAM Act. 15 USC 7701 et. seq.

2 Whether a defendant can be said lo advertise within the meaning of California
Business and Professions Code §17529.5, in & commercial email advertisament that refther
mentions or references the defendant or any third party In privity with the defendant, nor any
properly, goods, services, or axiensions of credil as specifically offerad by the defandan! or any

third party in privity with the deferndant.

FLANTIFFS MOTION FOR SUMMARY ADJLDICATION ] C-N5-5%24 JCS
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Plaintiff has decided to change the language of the first issue 1o resalve the issus of
whethar the informatian is discoverable, not whether it ts admissible. Evidence does not have
lo be rdmissitile o be discoverabla. “Relevan! information naed not be admissible at the tnal if
the discovery appears reasonably calculated to lead o the discovery of admissitle evidenca.”
FRCP Rule 26(bj(1), Since whather the information is admissible zlso lums on severs|
complex issues, such as more probative than prejudicial, |t is nol appropriate o delerming this
Issue at this early stage of discovery,

Flaintiff has also changed the language, from the stipulation, as 1o whether defendant

as actually senl the emails. This Is slill 2 contestad issue and Is only a claim by Defendant at

this point. Plaintiff iz continuing discovery, in part to varify this faci, Plaintiff Is in the process of

conducting & lest against ils spam data base lo determing il emalls were recaived directly from
any domain name owned by Azoogleads, based on recently received subpoena Information
from Datster.com, Plaintiff also maintains that the incident period for emalls in violation brought
in this case Is st apen.  Therefore, Plaintiff confinues to search its datas bass of spam for
adilitional emails thal mest the criteria of this case.

Plaintiff also must point out thal lssue two contains an assumption that has not besn
verified. Thal is, whathar the third pariies mantioned in the emails are or are not in privity with
Defendant. Defendant has refused In thelr responses to Plalntiff's discovery requests for
information as 1o what afffiiates they have contracts with, other than the affiliastes providing the
"Bruce Wall® lead. There i5 no evidence that the two afiiliates named ars nol "USA Lenders
Metwork™ as describiad in the web pages to which the emalls directed the reciplents Deferdant
has: also nol answered Plaintiffs Request for Admissions Nos 40-43 stafing that afier
regsonable inguiry the information is Insufficient to answer. These requests specifically ask for

information about Defendants OPTIN GLOBAL, Vision Media, Rick Yang, and Peanie Pul Tibg

Lhen. Therefore, |f is still an issue for discovery as to whether Defendant wag in privity with

parties named In the emalls. In fact, one of the reasons Plaintii wants Defendant's list of
affillates (s lo verify this fact againet the data contained in the amalls
i

FLAINTIFFE MOTIDN FOR SUMMARY ADJUDICATION 2 Rt e
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STATEMENT OF FACTS

Plainliff made its Complaint after suffaring injury by & group of Defendants who intended
lo misuse IIs Intemel service resources to gain information about its clients and sell morigages
lo its clients. (Plainfill's Second Amended Complaint (hereafler “SAC™)). These actions. directly
violated various parts of the CAN SPAM Act of 2003 and California Business and
Professions Code & 175295 that prohibil sending certain types of commercial emalis that
mee! specific conditions.

Plaintiil has made setllemants and released &l of the Defendants in this case other than
Defsndant Azoogleads end Defendant Leads Limited. Defendant Leads Limited did not
respond 1o Plaintif's Complaint and Plaintiff has moved to take Leads Limited dafaull,

Plaintiff contends Ihal Defendant Azoogleads was the enfity that was responsible for
inducing the actual spammers to send emalls to Pleintitfs protected computer. Defendant then
benefited by selling the leads they gained to a group of mortgage brokers.

Plaintifl has been unabla to Identify the actual spammers in this case. That Is not an
unusual incident since the nature of vialations of the CAN SPAM Act of 2003 and California
Business and Professions Code £ 175235 iz thal the smalls conlain false header
information,  The use of false header information is used to mask the identity of the true
sender, making it virually impossible 1o identify the sender solely on the basis of the datg

conlgingd in the emails,

"FTC Chalrmian Muris and Commissionars Swindle and Thompson
each lestified in hearings: before the Committes this past spring lo
the FTC's tremendous difficulty in tracking and finding spammers
who send oul spam with fraudulent fransmizsion Information. In
responss (o members who guestioned the FTC's elfectiveness in
reducing the volume of spam, Chairman Muris lastified that (heir
investigations areé more sffective when "following the maonay”
hrough the business promoted in the e-mall message ‘o the
spammar.” 5. REP. 108-102, 8. Rep. No. 102, 108TH Cong., 15T
Sess. 2003, 2004 U.S.C.C.A N. 2348, July 16, 2003,

Congress addressed this problem by atteching hability to an entity whe procures the
sefvices of another 1o sand . spam on thelr behalf, 15 USC 7702(3) and (12); angd 15 USC
T708(0)(2). This |s therefore one of the key issues in the discovery process. Did Defendant

|| FLAINTIFFS MOTION FOR SURMBMARY ADJUDICATION i | C-0m-518 05
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Azoogleads procure the sending of the amalls?

Dunng the months of Ociober and November of 2005, plaintiff received in excess of
10,000 emails 1o s sarvars thal met the definition of SPAM Under the CGAN SPAM Act of
2003, These amails were sent using obviously stolen emall identities. These emails wera sent
with falze header Information 80 as o make tracing the source impossiblea These emails were
sant with subject lines thal contained consistently misspeliad words, (See Declaration of Melis
| White, 13 — Document #50 previously filed in the within mattar). The emalls have been
preduced to Defendants and will be made available ta the court If required. Various samples of
the emails are atisched to Plainllif's Declaration (Document #50).

All of these amallz asked the reciplent to go to varous specific Intemet sites, such as
wwmart.com, bbmaort.com, xxmor.com, etc., and contained a fink i gel there. However, once
a party went to ary of those sitas, the Information and site Information was axactly the same.
(See Declaration of Nelia White, 4 and Exhibit C— Document 50). In addition, the request at

thess slles was alwayes the same — (o fill out a profile to receive free quoles.

“On the avening of October 25, 2005, and extending into the
edrly hours of Qeloter 26, 2005, my mall service, mail.asis.com,
recaived many messages regarding real estate financing. | became
aware of this: because many of these messages were sent o amail
addresses that were no longer active; that is, they had long since
been given up by former custormmers and were therefore avallable for
reuse. In order to see whether they were recelving spam, | alizsed
all of these addresses to one account name." (Sas Declaration of
Malla White, 15— Docurment 50),

"Many of the websites referred to in these amail messages
had an URL of the form xxmort.com or xxmorinel whers the 'x'
consisted of any number or lefler causing me 1o suspect that they
were related somehow," (See Declaration of Nella While, 16 —
Documesnt 50)

“On Thursday, Dgtober 27, 2005, | filled out a form on one of
lhese websites. | chose wumortnet bacaussé || clearly had been
sonl o & large percentage of my customer base, listed
alphabelically, leading me to suspect they had been gathered by
means of & Directory Harvest Aftack” (See Declaralion of Nella
While, %7 and Exhibit C — Documen| 50).

The nex! day various martgage brokers called and left messages for "Bruce Woll™. (See

Declaration of Taresa Singleton, Exhibit A, 12 — Documant 51), There i3 no other way for the

FLAINTIFFS MOTICHN FOR SUMMARY ADIUDNGATION 4 CepE-5124 08
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morlgage brokers o have golten the name or the number they called on Oclober 28, 20035,

except from the profile completed by Nella White.

“The person 'Bruce Wolf' is fictitious name along with the
address created by me sirictly for the putpose of this profile. The
islephone number given in the -profile was comnected to an
answering machine in erder to record any responses made o fhis
profile anly,” [Declaration of Nella White, 19— Document 50).

Plainliff has proguced emails that were sent to Plaintiffs protecied computer from
Ogtober 25, 2006, through January 31, 2006.

Several of the morigage brokers siated they received lhe “Bruce Woll* lead from
Azoogieads, In addition, Aroogleads hag produced evidence that the lead came from iis

| affifate. It is obvious that more than one person was involved, as Defendant has through its

conlused responses 1o Plaintiff and to co-Defendant Quicken Indicateds |t got the "Bruce Wall™
lead from two lotally different sources. (See Exhibil A to REG [Defendant's unverffied
Response to Plaintifls Interrogatories Pg, 22, .22 to Pg. 23, L.7] and Exhibit B 1o REG
[Quicken’s Production Document QL-0084 to QL-0085]), Note that In the response lo Quicken,

Azoogleads calls John Strothers its “affiliate”. In its response to Inferrogatonies, Defendan

Azpogleads responds that it received the *Bruce Woll® lead from Seamlass Media Comp

Azongleads was named in Plaintiffs First Amended Complainl (heraafier “EAGT
Plaintiff filed its SAC on October 4, 2006, Defendant Azoogieads did no! respond to the FAC.
Instead after the SAC was issued Defendant requested and Plaintiff agreed to grant & 45-day
extension for answenng the complaint, making the due date November 24, 2006, Defendant
iailed 1o file a timely answer, filing its answer on MNovember 27, 2006 (Document 134-1)
Plaintiff did nol objac!

In an attempt to discover the true relationship between Defendant Azoogleads, the
morigage brokers, and Azoogleads’ affiliates Plaintifi propounded on January 23, 2007 a
Reques! for Admissions (herealter “RFAY), Interrogatories Set One (hereafter "Rogs") and a
Request for Prodoction of Documents Set One (hereafler “RFP)L {(Exhiblts C, D, and E o
REG), The due date for these discovery requests was February 27, 2007, Plaintiff received
Defendant’'s: response o the RFA on March 8, 2007, 10 days |ale. Defendant served (=

FLAINTIFFE MOTIDN EOR SUMMARY ARJUDICATION & C-05:510¢ JCg
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responsas fo Plaintiifs Rogs and RFP on March 14, 2007, 15 days late. (Ses Exhibits A-Rogs,
F-RFA, and G-RFP 1o REG),

These discovery requests attempl 1o answer several key questions in this case. Doss
Aroogleads use affiliates lo send email adveriisements to consumers? What (s the nature of
those advertisements? Who are the affiliates that send email advertisements? Whal is the
nature of lhe agreements with thoss affliates? Whal correspondence occurred belween
Azcogleads and its affillates? It Azoopieads has temms and condifions in s @gresments with
affiliates that profubit viclkation of the CAN SPAM Act, does Azoogleads enforce those lerms?
Does Azoogleads have proof of affimative consent from AS1S email customers o sand tham
email advertisemants? What were Azoogleads markeling plans during the incident period?
Was Aroogleads running marketing programs that used affillates lo sand amals 1o sonsumers
advertising mortaage loans during the incldent period?

All of the discovery propounded by Plaintifl relates to key slements of vislstions of the
CAN SPAM Act: who sent the emails?; were they sent on someona’s behall?; did the entity
hiring the sendar manage and control its agents?; did the hiting entity know or consciously
avoid knowlng the sender was violating the statutes?; did tha hifing agent bensfit from the
relationship?

In Dafendant's RFA responses Defendant makes multiple Impraper responses, stating a
ciear refusal to respond: “Azoogle déclines to respond 1o this Regusst® Exhibit F 1o REG —
Defendant Azoogleads.com Ine.'s Response lo Plaintiffs First Set of Requests for Admission -
Responses o Requests No. 12, 13, 14, 27, 28, 29, 30, end 31. Defeéndant also provides no
basiz for lts objections. Specifically Azoogleads declines to respond (o the question of whather
Azoogleads Tis in the business of acquiring consumer profle information by sending emails o
having emails sent by affiliates and/or other agents.” (See Exhibit F o REG Pg. 13 L. 14 - 27)

In Defendants lale responses to Plaintifs Rogs and RFPs, Defendant continually
attempts 1o limil the scope ol Plaintiffs discovery, In all of Defendant's responses to the
Plairitiffs Rogs and RFPs, Defandant attempts o limit the fime petiod for response to only the
period of Oclober 25, 2005 until Novernber 14, 2005. Exhibits A and G 1o REG. Plaintiff claarty

PLAINTIFF2 MOTION FOR SUMMARY ADJUDICATION B COs-E10d JCS
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defined the time frame for response as August 1, 2005 to present. (Exhibit D to REG Pg. 6, L
10, and Exhitil E to REG Pg. 7 L. 16).

In Defendanl's: responses Defendant continually attempls to limit its responses to anly
the “Bruce Wolf" lead, even though Plainliff is asking for Information cancerning all of
Defendant’s affiliale relationships, all of Defendant’s morigage broker relafionships, all of
Dalendant’s marketing programs, Defendanl's opt-in list, atc. (Exhibits A snd G o REG)

Plaintiff has since agrsed lo limit its requests to. Defendant's email affiliates and
morigage loan vertical.  Plainfiff has also offered the allernallve of using an Independent third
parly to search Aroogleads’ opt-in and suppression data bases lo discover i afimmative
conzant has been granted. [n some cases Plaintifi has offerad to limit the fime frame to more
closely align with the period stated in the SAC. The fimitation on time has bean linked B the
production of marketing plans and “creatives.” Plaintiff offerad 1o limil this time frame to Jufhe 1
2003, to January 31, 2008, This is the likely periad when marketing programs and “creatives”
would have been senl to affiliates to use in email advertisemeants sant in the fall and winter of
2005/2006.

A camplete list of the limits that the partles have agreed to is Included in the joint letter 1o
the Courl, dated April __, 2007, altached hereto as Exhibit H to REG.

Piainlift asks the cour to provide guidance as lo scope of discovary in this case for the
following questicns:

1. Flaintiff is seaking lo identify all of Defandant’s amaii affiliates;

2 Flainlif s sesking t© sse &l of Defendants emall affiliate

tonlracts/agreements;

o Plaintifi |s seeking to ses all crealives snd marketing plans used by

Defendant from the period of June 1, 2005, 1o January 31, 2006, in
Defendant's morigage loan vertical;

4 Plainliff Is sesking to identify all of Defendant's domain names and IP

addresses used |n its marketing vartical,

5. Plainliff Is- seeking o see all of Defendant's web pages used in

FLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR SUMMARY ADJUDICATION 7 C-05-8124 JCB
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Defendant's morigage verfical from the perlod of August 1, 2005, to
January 31, 2006;

6. Fiaintiff |s. seeking cormespondence relating to spam abuse Ioifrom
Defendant Azoogleads loffrom consumers, Internet Service Providers,
spam waich dog agencies (such as SPAMHAUS and SPAM COPS); and
all affiiales;

T Plaintiff is seeking 1o find out If Defandant Azoogleads has any proof that
Plaintiffs ASIS cuslomers have consented to recaive emall sdverdisements
fram AZoogleads;

8. Plamlifl Iz seeking lo determing to what exten! the terms “pattern and
practice” as used In 15 USC 7T06(g)(1) and (2), alldw Plaintiff lo discover:

1) the idenhty and relationship of Azoogleads o its affiliates; and 2)

correspondance belween Azoogleads, s affiliates, and other anlitiss

regarding spam abuse.

ARGUMENT
1. Legal standard for summary adjudication of discovery Issues.
Because the parfies have decided to call this motion & motion for summary adjudication

of issues and fhe court has agreed, the parties must follew the rules for partial summary
|udgment as defined in FRCP Rule 56,

Parfial adjudication of fssues is defined in FRCP Rule 56(d):

{d} Case Not Fully Adjudicated on Motion., If on mobtion drider this
rule judomert I8 nol rendered upon the whole case or for all the
relief asked and a tral is necessary, the court at the hearing of the
motian, by examining the pleadings and the evidence before il &and
by interrogating counsal, shall if practicable ascerain what materisl
facts exist withou! substantial controversy and what materisl facls
are aciually and in good faith controverted, it shall thereupon make
an order specifying the facts thal appear wilhout substantial
controversy, including the extent o which the amount of damages
or other reliel is not in controversy, and directing such further
procaedings in the action as are Just. Upon the trial of the action the
facts so specified shall be deamed established, and the trial shall be
conducted scoordingly.

FlLAMNTIFFE MOTION FOR SLUMMARY ADULIDICATION i C-O6-512 JC8
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While the issues decided in an FRCP Rule 56(d) maotion are final they do not represent
a final judgment, and therefore cannol be appealed prior fo final judgment. Biggins v. Oltmer
lron Works, 154 F 2d 214 at 217 (7th Cir. 1946), also see Leonard v. Socony-Vacuum Oif
Co., 130 F.2d 535 at 536 (7th Cir., 1942),

A motion for summary adjudication resolves whether cerain facts are established. The
only facts at Issus In this motion I whether there are facts o support plaintiffs claim that
Plaintitf's discovary requests may reasonably lead o admissible evidenoe,

The standard for deciding what is discoverable Is defined in FRCP Rule 26(h)(1)

(1) In General. Parties may abtain discovery regarding any matier,
naol privilegad, thal s relevant to the claim or defense of any party,
Including the existence, descriplion, nature, custody, condition, and
tocation of any books, documents, or other tangible things and the
ientity and location of persons having knowledge of any
discoverable matter, For good cause, the cour! may order
discovery of any matter relevant o the subject mattér involved in the
action. Ralevan! information need not be admissitle at the trial if
the discovery appears ma:sc:nahi;_n,r calculated 1o lead o he
dizcovery of admissible evidenoe.

Therefore any matter not privileged and relevant can be discovered. The avidence
soughl nead anly appaar (o reasonably lead 1o admissible evidenca. It does netl need o be
admissible al trial

Relevance is defined in FRE 401 as: “evidence having any lendency to make the
exisience of-any fact (hat is of consequenca lo the detarmination of the acfion more probable or
less probable than I8 would be without the evidence ®

Therefore the datermination of whether Plaintiff may discover the evidence described, by
rsues one and two above, depends on whether the discovery of tha! infarmation shows some
fact of consequence more or less probable, Therafors, Plaintiff will address those issues in
context of the elementz of the statlutes al issue. That is, Plaintiff will present a prima lscle case

and incorporate the issues within that argument,

2. Plaintiff's request for information about affiliates Is consistent with the
language of the CAN SPAM Acl

a. Plaintiff's Prima Facie case.

Flalntiff's requests for information are conslstent with Plaintiffs CAN SPAM Act causes

FLAINTIFES MOTEN FOR SLIWMMARY ADJUDICATION 3 C-055128 oS
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of action and are relevant 1o showing the principle elements of the causes of action

An Internel Actess Provider (IAP} may bring an aclion under 15 USC 7704{a)(1), or (b}
or (d) If he is adversely affected. In addition, an IAP may also bring an action under 15 USC
7704(a)(2), (3), (4), or (5) if he can show a pattern or practice tha! violates those paragraphs.

Plaintiif has brought actions complaining of violations of 15 USC 7704(a)(1), (2), (3), and
(5). Plalntiff has also brought its action under 15 USC 7704(k(1) and (2),

To survive a motion for summary judgment based an an action brough! LUnder 15 USC
T704(a)(1) a plaintiff mus? answer the following questions:

(A)  Is Plaintiff a Provider of Intemet Access Service and did he suffer &n
adverse effect?
(B}  Did Defendant *Initiate” Spam E-Mail to Plsintifi?
(1) Waere the e-malls sent “on behalf’ of Defendant?
(2) Did Defendant have ‘aolusl knowledge” orf
“gonsciously avald knowing” of violations of the CAN-
SFAM Act? Hypertouch, Inc. v. Kennedy-Western
University, Nol Reporled In F.Supp.2d, 20068 WL
648688 (N.D.Cal. 2008) — courtesy copy attached as
Exhibit | to REG,
(C)  Did the emails contain “header information that s materially false or
materially mislzading™ 7 15 USC 7704(a)(1)}

The language of 15 USC 7704({a)(2) adds an additional violation hasad on a commercial
glactronic message thal contains a false or misleading subject fina,

The term “initate the transmisskon” is defined in 15 USE 7702(9) as: "mears o originale
or transmit such message or 10 procure the ongination or transmisslon of such message... For
purposes of this paragraph, more than pne persen may be considered to have initated a
massage,”

The term “procure” i= defined In 16 USC T702(12) as: “‘means Intentionally to pay or

| provide other consideration o, of |nduce, another person to initiate such & message on one's

 FLAINTIFE'E MOTION FOR SUMMARY ADJUDICATION 10 L0851 JC5
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behall." 15 USC 7706(g)(2) modifies the standard definition of procure, as it applies to 1APs, by
adding the following language after “hehalf: “with aclual knowledge, or by consciously
avoiding knowing, whether such person is engaging, or will angage, in & pattemn or practice that
violates this chapter,”

Note, there is no requirement in the language of 15 USC 7704{a)(1) that: distinguishas
the lype of amall "a commercial elactronic mall message, or & lansactional or redationship
message” entompasses all possible forms of email for purposes of the CAN SPAM Act - see
15 USC 7702(2)); even I the email was solicited, Merely sending or procuring the sending on
 one's behalf of an emall containing false or misleading header information 1o a prolecisd
computsr is & viclation actisriable by an 1AP.

15 USC 7704{b}(1) and (2) refate to aggravated violations for directory harvests of amall
accounts and use of automated methods for creation of emall accounts in order 1o send emalls
In violation of 15 USC 7704(a), Therafore, after establishing a case for violation of 15 USC
7704{a), an IAP may also pursue treble statutory damages under 15 USC 7704(b)(1) or (2).
(See 15 USC 7706(a)(3C)(H.)

Flaintif has provided evidence that it [s an 1AP and a statement of adverse affect. Since
these elements are not al issue here and these are large documents, Plaintift will nol present
this evidence here. However, Defendant has recelved the evidence and It can be produced 1o
the court upor requeass.

Evidence that the emails contaln faise header information ang misleading or false
subject lines 15 also nol at Issue hare. The actual emails have been provided 1o the Deferidan)
az well as an explanation of how a representative sample of the emails violale the false header
and mialeading subject fime prohibitions. Because this information is very high volume, Plaintiff
will not present that evidence here, but it can be produced 1o the court upon request.

Therefore, Plaintifis burden here is fo show that Defendant initiated the emals 1o
Plaintiff. That Is, Dafendant elther sent or procured the sending of the amails with aciual
knowledge or consciously avolding knowling that the emalle were sent In violation of the statute.

m
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k. Defendant is connected to the emails by the “Bruce Wolf” lead.

Defendant has admitted thoy pr-:w'lv::led the "Bruce Wolf" lead to Quicken Loans, [(See
Exhibil F to REG, Response No, 221,

Defendant has provided evidence that lis affiliale, sither Seamiess Media Corp or John
Strothers, provided the "Bruce Wolf" lead o Defandant. (See Exhiblt A to REG Defandant's
unverified Response to Plaintiffs Inerrogalones Pg, 22 L. 22 o Pg. 23 L 7 and Exhibit B lo
REG Quigker's Prodution Document QL-0084 (o QL-0085),

Az discuzsad above, the information contained in the “Bruce Wolf fead was created by
Nells While of ASIS. (See Declaration of Nella White, §7 and Exhibit © - Document 50).
There Is na way for anyone [0 have obtained the "Bruce Woli™ lsad informalion except through
lhe form that Nella White fllled oul. Therefare, It is more likely than nol thal sifher Seamiess
Media Corp or John Strothars owned the website and sen! the emalls |6 consumers al emall
acoounts at asis.comn,

Defendant's have produced a contract for Seamisss Madia Corp, (Exhibit J 1o REG) 11
has not produced a contract for John Strothers. This coniract does not prohibit the sending of
emalls in violation of the CAN SPAM Act, it only refers (o violations in reference to the use of
Defandant’s supprassion fist, Exhibit J 1o REG Pg. AZ000007 para. 12, Therefore, if the email
was sonl by Searnless Medls Corp, Defendant has producad no svidence that It prohibited
violations of the CAN SPAM Actin itz contract,

Thie definition of “procure” Includes: “induce, another parson o nifiate such a message
on ona's behall.” 15 USC 7702(12), The coniracl In place with Seamless Media Corp is at a
minimum an indicafion that Inducement ocourred, Plaintitf has subposnasd Information from
Seamlass Madia Corp o digcover their gctual Involvemnent and whethsr or not they used emall
golicitations:

As discussed above Delendant has nol admilted or denied as to whether it ‘had a
contract with the Defandant’s associated with OPTION GLOBAL. Exhibit F to REG Responsas
Nos, 4043,

There i= a clear conneclion between Azoogleads and the information entered by Nella

FLAINTIFE S MOTION FOR SUMBEARY ADJUDICATION ' C-pEs1id JCS
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While In response 1o an spam email, thal Azoogleads then sold to Defendant Quicken Loans.

The basis for Defendant's argument not 1o respond to Plaintiffs discovery is that they did
hot send the emails, nor procure the sending of the emalls. The evidence of the *Bruce Wolf"
lead, Azoogleads admission thal they received the emall from ite affiliate, and the existence of
a contract 1o deliver Igads stands in stark opposition to the statement that Azoogleads did rot
procure the sending of al leasl one emall = the email from which the *Bruce Wolf lead was
generaEted.

c. All of the emails can be linked to Defendant.

The other outstanding question is whether the ofhiar emalls received by Plaintiif can be
tied back In some mannar 1o Azcogleads?

As Nella While stated, the emalls all have similar characterstics. (See 53, 4, and 6 of
the Dedlaration of Nella White — Document 50).  Plaintiff has conducted & partial study of the
domalin names and IP addresses of the web sites where the recipient was directed. (Ses N2
and Exhibil A to Declaration of Michelle Burdock), This study indicates that & large number of
the websites that the emails directed the recipiant to were at the sama |P address, ever though
the domain name was different

For example domain names wumorf.com and wumortnet directad the recipient to
exactly ihe same IF addresses. The |P address changed over time. Changing the IP Addrass
regulary is a tactic of spammers 1o prevent being traced.  Wumort.com and wumort ned
changed lo exactly the same IP addresses on exaclly the same day, See Exhibit A to
Declaration of Michelle Burdoak.

Several other domain names were discovered to link to the same |P address as
wumaort.com. and wumaort.mel.  Ses Y2 of Declaration of Michelle Burdock for a list of domain
names. Over 1658 emails of the subject emails directed the racipient to Ihese domain names,
linking the source of the emails, See T4 of Declaration of Michelle Burdock. Tha Wabeite
wurmort.net was used by Nella White to enter tha “Bruce Wolf" information. [See Declaration
| of Nells White 7 and Exhibit C- Document 50}, This indicates that, at a minimum, 1658 of the

emails were from exactly the same source. Tha source (hal |s tied o Azoogleads by the "Bruts

PLAINTIFES MOTION FOR SUMMARY ADJUDICATION 13 C-0B-5124 Jo5
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Wil lead,  Plaintiff Is preparing a complete study of the emalls with tables comparing the
various characterisiics of fhe emalls and will make this information available when ready,

Cther more obvious Indications link the emails as coming from the same source, For
example: 2007 of the emails contain the subject line “Excellent morlages ratees”, misspeliing

the words in exaclly the same manner; 2396 of the emalis contain the subject line "Low

mortagge rates approval’, 2135 of the emalls contain the subject line "Mortagoe ratee
approved”; and 2238 of the emails contain the subject line "Notice: Loww morages ratee
approved”. Sea 15 of Declaration of Michelle Burdock.

Other charactaristics in the emails are also exaclly the same, for sxample 1397 emalls
contain the statemenl *You could get over $480,000 for as little as 5350 a month!”. SH26
emails contain the statemen! *Keine email hier”, surrounded by gibberish, See 76 of
Declaration of Michelie Burdock, The use of "Keineg emall hier" s an obvious attampt to inciude
an unsubseribe link while avolding the spam filters, which look for unsubscribe links as part of
their filtering procass.

These ciroumstantial facts clearly indicate that these emails either came from the same
source or thal the same marketing materals were used in their creation, In either case, since
the “Bruce Woll" emall |s likely to have come from one of Azoogleads affillates. on behalf of
Azoogieads, |l is reasonable to assert on the circumstances demonstrated In the actual emails
that most or all of them cama In the same manper

Plaintiff now wishas 1o dlarify the connection between this data, Defendant Azooglesds,

and Defendant's affilinles.

d. Defendant’s contention that they did not send ar procure the sending
of the emalls is not sound.

Plaintiff has requested Information aboul Defendant's affiliates: wha they are, what is the
relationship; proof of agreementsicontracts, correspondence of markefing  matarials;
correspondence regarding spam abuse; and payments, This information I= cansistent with the
language of the CAN SPAM Act of 2003, California Business and Professions Code §
17529.5 and the intent of the legisiatura in enacting these statutes.

PLAINTIFFE MOTIDN FOR SUMBARY ADILCHCATION T4 C-05-5124 JCB
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Dafendant complains that this Information | not relevant since Azoogleads did not send
the emails and its affiiates (parties In privity) did not send the emails. But in af least one case,
the "Bruce Wolf® lead, a direct conneclion has beenshown, In addition, as demonstrated above
al lgas! 1658 of lhe emails conlaining wumort.nel or wumort.com came from the axacl same
source as fhe "Bruce Woll™ email. Therefore, there is more than sufficient evidence to change
the terms of the inguiry 1o

1. Whather the following types of evidence are discoverable on the guestion

of whather a delendanl who induced the sanding of 1858 &mails In
violation of the CAN SPAM Act and California Business and
Professions Code §175295 can be forced lo produce evidence
regarding whether it procured the sending of those emails within the

meaning 15 USC TT02(12) and 15 USC TT06{g).

8. The term “procure” was Intended to Include affilistes and proof of
control of affiliates |s part of the process envisioned by the
legisiatura.

The legislalure envisioned the use of third parties by advertising companies to shigld
thamselves from lability for spamming, The CAN SPAM Act makes an adveriiser liable for
procuning the sending of spam with knowledge, or consciousty avoiding knowing that the statute
was being violated. 15 USC TTO6(g)2).

The leglslalure also foresaw thal adverisers would create agreements thal would, on

paper, shield them trom fabilily.

“Subsection (g)(2) contains a special definition of "procure” for
purposes of ISP enforcement actions (hat includes & scienter
requirement with. regard (o whelber a person who initistes
commercial email on their behall is engaging or will engage In &
patlern or practice that violates this Act. It Is the intent, with regard
lo the faksificalion violations of Seclion 5(a)(1), that "conscious
svoidanoe of actual knowledge"” be construed broadiy in a mannar
consisten! with a fundamental purpose of this Act to prohibit and
delar lalsification technigues in commercial e-mail, Therafora If the
procurer has an indication that the initiator 1z "E7T3 or has engaged
In any falsifisd =spamming lechnigque prabiblied by Section 5(a){1) or
18 U.S.C. 1037, the Acl is intended lo be read so thal such a
procurer meets the standard of "conscious avoidance of actus
knowledge” of violations of the Act by an initiator unless the

FLAINTIFES MOTHIN FOS SUMMARY ADJUDICATION 15 C-05-5124 JOS
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proclrer and takes reazonable steps (o prevan! such violations by
the initiator.

Aclual knowledge of conscious avoidance of actual knowledge
could be evidenced, for example, by Information oblained by the
procurer directly from an Initialor, br via a comgplainl, warning or
cease and desist communicatlon received from-a recipient, Intemeat
access service, or faw enforcemant alerting the procurer that an
initiator 1o whom lhe procurer i3 providing considerafion is violating
the law. Conscious avoidance of actual knowledge could also be
evidencad, lor example, by: (1) Daing little or nothing to detarmine
whather suspec! initialors who are markeling pariners, resellers,
affilistas, agents or contractors of the procurer are viokating or have
vinkated) Fedaral or State law; (2) failing to follow the procurers
slated policles or procedures prohibiting Megal e-mall advertising
methods by initiaters who are markeling partners. resellers,
affiliales, agenlts or contraclors; (3} repeatedly allowing inltiators
who are angeged In lllegal e-mail advertising methods lo provide
falsa information or o fall to identify themsaslves when thay sign up
to conduct e-mall adveriising for the procurer's products or
services; (4) repeatedly paying initislors whom the procurer has
terminated for vigkating the procurer's e-mall policies prohiblting
ilegal spamming methods; or (5) allowing initiators who have been
terrminaled lor violating the procurer's policies prohibiting legal e-
mall activities rapeatedly to sign up for new acoounts. The above is
not an exhaustive list of ways in which the requisite state of mind
can be evidenced.

150 Cong. Rec. E72-02, 2004 WL 170208 (Cong.Rec)), SPEECH
OF HOMN, JOHN D. DINGELL OF MICHIGAN, Wednesday, January
28, 2004 (Couriesy copy provided as Exhibil J lo REG).

L1 Evidence of pattern and practice |s applicable to thoe CAN SPAM Act
and is admissible under FRE 404(b).

The infarmation requested under this assumption all congams whether thera is s paltem
and praclice of violation of the statule — [tems 1{A) — 1(D), Evidence of pattern and practice is
allowed under both 15 USC 7708(gk1) and (g}(2). 15 USC TTOR(G) 1) slates: "a pattern or
practice thal violasles paragraph (Z), (3). (4), or (5] of seclion 7704(a) of this titls...". 15 USC
TTOGIgY 2] states: “with aclusl knowledge, or by consclously avoiding knowing, whather such

| parson s engaging, or will engage, in a patiern or practice thal violates this chapler.”

Evidence of a pattern or practice can lherefore be usad to show a viclalion of 16 USC
F704{a)(2), (3), {4). and {5), Evidence of pattern or practica can also e used to show that an

affiliate that was induced o send emails had a pattern or practice of sending spam emails,

FLANTIFFS MOTIDN FOR SUMMWARY ADJUDICATION 8 COs-at24 JCB
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Evidence of prior acts may clearly be used to establish the existence of a pattemn or
scheme. FRE 404(b), Dosier v. Miami Valley Broadcasting Corp., 656 F.2d 1295 at 1300
(9t Cir,, 1981), The court in Desier found that @ malaral |ssue of fag! exisled because
evidence of pror bad acts vad nol been shown 10 be unrelated.

Plaintiff s requésting Information conceming whather Defendant or s affiiates have
sent spam smalls in Ihe past and whether there have been complaints made by various parlies
concerning past spam sbuse ogses. This-information is clearly indicative of pattern and
practice of violation either by Defandant or its affiliste.

To gather his informaticon Plaintiff mus! know who Defendant's affiliales wera during the

incident period and whal was Defendants relationship {o those affiiates.  Plaintiff must know

whal resources Defendant had available. Plaintiffi must know Defendant's URL's, Domain
names, IP Addresses, and websites. These can be used fo track abuse complaints.  Plaintiff
must know who was providing Internset services to Defendant, this includes its |SPs.  Ptantiff
mugl be able o discover internsl and external comespondence and files regarding spam
abuse. In essence the evidenca thal will show or nol show a paltern or praclice of sbuse
either by Defandant or lis affilfates.

Plaintifl must also be able to discover whathar or not Defendant knew its affiliales wers
reguiarly violating Ihe CAN SPAM Act This supports tha confention of knowing of
consciously avoiding knowing lis affiliales were spamming. To suppornt this issue, Plaintff
must know who Defendant’s affiliates weare and whal contracts were in place at the time of the
incident.  Plaintiff must krnow what correspondenca concerning abuse went belween
Defendant, its affiliates, and Defendant’s ISP (spam abuse complainls generally are sent lo
|SPs).

Therefore, Plamtitf must be allowed to discover the information descrbed in lssue 104)

= 1D} lo determine if there is a pattern and practice thal fits a violation of the CAN SPAM Act

3, The definition of advertise as used in California Business and Professions
Code and California law support discovery of information based on the
amalls at issue in this case,

Plaintiff contends that the emails and othar established factz in thiz case provide 3 basis

| FLAINTIFFS MOTION FOR SLIMMARY ADFEDICATION 17 -0%-5129 JCG
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for establishing Defendan! as the advertiser in the emalls at issue. This contention justifies
discavery of the marketing materials and retalionships used by Defendsnl and itz affiliates o
further demonstrate the adverising relationship.

California Business and Professions Code §17529.5 provides:
fa) I Is unlawful for any parson or enlily o adveriise In 3
commercial e-mail adveriizament elther gent from California or sant
o & Calfornia electranic mall address under any of the following
clrcumalances:

Those circumstancas include: use ol a third parties email account or domain name
without the third parties permnission; false header information; or a mislsading subject line.

Tha amails a3l issue have been demonstraled 1o viotate all of these requirements and
this has been produced to Defendant. Since proof of these issues s not in dispula hers,
Plamtiff will not produce a copy af lhis svidence here. | required the evidence can be
produced for the court at its request.

Thea amails were sent 1o emall accounts in Garbervllle, California.

The |ssus here is whather the emails in this case represan! an advartisemant sant by
Defendant Azoogleads,

California Business and Professions Code §175208,1 defines the lerm advertiser as:
“(a) "Advertiser means a persen or entity hat adverlises through the use of commercial e-mall

advertisemants "

The California Legislature decided:

“There 15 a8 need to regulats |he advertisers who use spam, as well
as the actual spammers, becausg the actual spammers can be
difficull 1o track down due o some relum addressas that show up
on the display as "unknown” and many othars being abvious fakes
and they ara often located ofishore.” Callfornia Business and
Professions Code §17525))

The emails al jssue In this case ohviously Bt this description. Thare Is no way fo
identify the |dentity of the sender through the information provided In the email. In addition,
fatse names, such as "USA Lenders Network™ were used lo hids the identity of the advertiser.

The California Lagisialure also found that: “The Irug bensficiaries of spam are the

PLAIMTIFEE MOTION FOR -SUMMARY ATEDEAT 0N 14 58124 JC5
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advertisers who benefil from the marketing derived from the adverisements” California
Business and Professions Code §17529(K).

California Business and Professions Code §17529.1(c) makes the following
definition;

“Commercial e-mail adverisement’ means any electronic -mail
message Inltialed for the purpose of advertising or promoting the
lease, sale, rental, gift offer, or other disposition of any property,
goods, services, or exension of gredit” (Undsrine added for
amphasis.);

Califunia has adopted a broad definition of the term advertise: “any means of
exploitation through the conveyance of information js adverising.” People v, McKean, (1925)
76 Cal.App. 114 al 131 [243 . 888},

Therefore, based on the definiion of advertlsing used In California thers |5 no
requirement thal |he adverlisement contain the aclual name of the adverdiser The
requiremerits are: 1] there be a conveyance of information; 2} there is an axploitation of the
intendad raciplenl ol the advertisemen|; 3) the advertiser benelit from the advertisament.

There 18 no Issue as lo whether the emails at Issus are advertisements. Clearly by
woking al the emails one can determineg that an offer is being made thal is Intanded o sollcit
business from polentlal customers. (See Declaration of Mella White, Y4 snd Exhibit & -

Document 500 The first emall in the group states:

"We Iried contacting you ewhile ago aboul your low interest
maortafge rate,

You have bean selected lor our lowesl rate in years...
You could gel over $460,000 for as little as $350-a month!

Bald credil, Bank*ruptcy? Doesn't maller, low rates ars fixed no
matter whatf

To get a frea, no obli gation cansultation click below:
hittp: e wumort.net”

An offer is baing made to get a low Interest morigage rate offer simply by clicking on the
link to wumort net. Thisis an adverdisemenl There is a clear conveyance of information that
iz intended o exploit the intended regipiant,

Does Defendant Azoogleads baneflt from this advertisement? As discussed above

PFLAINTIFFS MOTEOM FOR S1MMARY ADJUCHCATION 10 COEA124 JES




=Y

B T e o ——
M o &5 o M o= D

1r
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
25
27

Case 3:05-cv-05124-JCS  Document 228-8  Filed 06/01/2007 Page 23 of 25
Case 206-cv-058124 .28 Document 199  Filed 04/11/2. ./ Page 23of 25

Defendan! Azoogleads sold fhe "Bruce Woll™ lead under contract to Quicken Loans. (See
Exhibit F to REG, Response Mo. 22). Quicken Loans has provided eignificant evidence of this
relationship by praduction of their contract with Dafendan Azoogleads and the lead sheet sent
by Defendant Azocogleads. Exhibits L and M lo REG. Therefore, Azoogleads is a direct
beneliciary of this advarfisement.

In addition the adverlisement clearly concemns ane of the specific areas defined by the

W@ w & owm o W M

| California Business and Professions Code §17529 1(c): “sxtension of credit”.

Azoogleads is advertising through commercial emall advertisements by use of offers o
extend cradit in order to gel sales léads lo sell o mortgage brokers.

There is no requirement In any of the Califomia statutory language or California case
law to- support a raquirement thatl the advertiser be identified in the adverisement.

Azoogleads dentifies its relationship with its affiliale Seamless Media Corp as placing
an “Insertion Order for Morigage Lead” In an advertisement. Exhibit J to REG. In Azoogleads

marketing'meadia agresment with Quicken Loans they state;

“Wheraeas, Company (referring lo Azoogleads) is engaged In the
business of providing opl-in medls and adverlising services to
consumers who have sxpressed -an interest in receiving, for their
bensfil, information about specific products and services:”,

Exhibit L to REG Pg. QLO0O31, second paragraph,

Azoogleads has admilted by this contract that it Is in the business of advarfising and is
acquiring leads through s marketing services 1o sell to Quicken Loans. The “Bruce Walf lead
was sold by Defendant Azoogleads o Defendant Quicken Loans, Exhibit M to REG,

Azoogleads has provided no evidence that it is not an advertiser bagad an the definition
of Caiifornia statutes and California case law. There |5 a8 clear link between the email
adveriisemen! used to generate the "Bruce Woll® lead and Azoogleads. Azoogleads haes
benefited from that advanising activity by salling the lead (o Quitken Loans

Theretors, Azooglaads is advertising in the emalls al issue and discovery of its aclivities
is appropriate and will lead to admissible evidence.

Plaintiff has requested lthe marketing materlals/programs, contracts with affiliates, and
the |dentities ol marketing managers used by Azoogieads during the incident perod in fis
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morigage verical. In a second sel of discovery, Plaintifi has asked for all of the “crestives”
(advertising Insertion materials) used by Azoogleads and prwided to email affiliates during and
three months prior 1o the incident pericd in Azoogleads marigage vertical

Plaintiff s trying to discover if the markeling materials are related to the amalls 3¢ jssue,
This information would be directly admissible to show that Azcogleads was providing
marketing malerals lo its affiliates similar 1o those appearing in the amails. 2! issue.  Thiy
infarmation would also be directly admissible 1o support the contention that Azooplaads

induced its affiliates to send the emails a! lssue.

4, Defendant has waived all objections by their untimely responses to
Plaintiff s Rogs and RFPs.

Dafendant has waived all objections fo Plaintiff's first sel of Rogs and RFPs by IIs

| untimely responses and should be compalied o respond fully 1o the requests, \While this js a

side issue to the issues slipulated for summary adjudication it is a primary issue as 1o whalher
Plaintiff's discovery can be objecied 1o @8 overbroad, vague, ambigunus, ato. This iSsue i
also critical as to whather Defendant may resist discovery |hrough claims of firivilage = it is
clear from the applicable case law that they cannot.

FRCP Rule 33(b)(4) states; “(4) All grounds for an oblection fo an intarrogatory shall ba
statad with specificity. Any ground not stated in a limely objection is waived unless the party’s
fallure to object Is excused by the court for good cause shown. “Statutory intarpretation
begins with the plain meaning of the stalule's language. Where the statutory language is clear
and consisten! with the statutory scheme at (ssue, the plain language of Ihe statute is
conclusive and the judicial inquiry |s at an end " Molski v. M.J. Cabile, Inc., — F.3d —, 2007
WL BB3532 at 7 (8th Cir, 2007); citing Botosan v. Paul McNally Realty. 216 F.3d B27 at 831
(9th Cir., 2000)

"Generally, in the absence of an extension of lime or good cause, the fallure lo objec! 1o
Interrogatones within the time fixed by Rule 33, FRCIWP, constitutes a walver of any objection,
This is true aven of an objection that the information sought i= privileged,” Dawis v. Fendier,
650 F.2d 1154 at 1160 (9th Cir,, 1981), The court in Richmark Corp. v. Timber Falling

Conswitants, 853 F 2d 1468 at 1473 (2th Cir 1882) piting Davis v. Fendier furlher spplied
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this rile to FRCP Rule 34 as it applies {o requests for production,

Dafandant was 15 days late In responding to Plaintif's discovery requests. The only
excuse thal Defandant bas offered |s thal the information is not relevant to the cese at issue
‘andlar that Plaintilf has not provided Defendant proof as to Defandant's liability In this action.
Defendanl made these arguments in its untimely responses  These arguments hardiy
represent good cause for not responding in & timely manner. Defendant could easily have
made ihesa objections in a fimely mannar and then argued their merits.  Whathar or nol
objections are waived is not a matter of the merils of the objections but of the imeliness of the
showing. Safeco Ins. Co. of America v. Rawstrom, 183 F.R.D. 868 at FN1 (C.0.Cal. 1988);
aiting Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co. v, West, 748 F 2d 540 gt 542 (10th Clr., 1984),
| Therafora, withoul a showing of good cause to the court, Defendant’s have waived &l
ohjections as to Plaintiff fist set of Rogs and RFPs.

Therelore, Defendant should be ordered to respond lo each of Plaintiff's Rogs and
RFP=

CONCLUSION

Tharatore, he Information requested in Plainliffs discovery requests is intanded to lead

o admissible evidence and is melevant (o this action. Therefore, it is within the court's

discretion to allow discovery of evidence regarding Azoogleads and Its affillates reputations of

spam abuse and iis email adverising materials. Defendant has waived all objsctions 1o
Plaintiffs firs! set of Rogs apd RFPs. In the interests of jusiice, the court should compsl
responses o Plaintlf's discovary requests.

SINGLETON LAW GROUP

Datad: April 11, 2007 /sl Jason K. Singleton
Jason K. Singlaton,
Richard E. Grabowsk|, Attomays for Plaintiff,
ASIS INTERNET SERVICES
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